
Metropolitan Washington Airports Authority 
Ronald Reagan Washington National Airport 

Fixed Base Operator (FBO) Questions 
RFP No. 5-13-C001 

 

1. Please define rental rate of 21.32. Is this calculated based upon 71,326 SF equals 1,520,670 in 
addition to the MAG. 
ANSWER:  The rental rate is an authority-calculated rate per square foot covering direct O&M 
expenses plus debt service and coverage costs for the FBO facilities.  The rate is based on 71,326 
square feet (71,326 X $21.32 = $1,520,670) and is in addition to the MAG. 

 
2. Is there a fuel flowage fee? 

ANSWER:  The Airport does not charge a fuel flowage fee, however, the successful offeror is 
required to join the airline fuel consortium which currently contracts with a third party operator to 
operate the fuel farm on their behalf.  The fuel farm operator charges each consortium member  a per 
gallon fee.  This fee is capped at six and one half cents per gallon.   
 

3. Does the FBO retain a percentage of collected landing fee revenue? 
ANSWER:  Yes, the FBO retains twenty percent (20%). 
 

4. What are the minimum required FBO hours (open for business)? 
ANSWER:  The minimum “open for business” hours are 6:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m.; however, the 
contractor must provide a plan for responding to emergencies or scheduled arrivals outside of the 
“open for business” hours noted above. 
 

5. For the benefit of bidders who have no operating history at DCA, can you please provide total utility 
expense for an annual period? 
ANSWER:   

Calendar Year 2012 
Electricity - $66,313 
Water/Sewer - $  2,001 
Heat/Steam - $33,234 
 

6. Is there a condition report for Hangar 7 and FBO bldg? 
ANSWER:  No. 

 
7. Is there a phase 1 environmental baseline report? 

ANSWER:  No. 
 

8. Is the avg 5 flights per day base on 365 days (1825) or 240 weekdays (1200)? 
ANSWER:  The average is based on 365 days. 
 

9. Is there a breakout of fuel volume by tenant? 
ANSWER:  No. 
 

10. Is there a breakout of military? 
ANSWER:   
Governmental – 1,031 
Corporate        –    771 



 
11. Is military pricing available? 

ANSWER:  No. 
 

12. Is US Coast Guard 2012 fuel volume and lease income available? 
ANSWER:  No.  The US Coast Guard is now leasing space directly from the Airport and is not 
currently a tenant of the contractor. 
 

13. Is a Signature buyout required by the bidder? 
ANSWER:  No. 
 

14. Is weighting of evaluation available? ex capital improvement 20%. 
ANSWER:  No. 
 

15. Is a copy of the Signature lease available? 
ANSWER:  A copy of current contract has been posted at http://www.mwaa.com/6146.htm. 
 

16. How is rental rate of $21.32 set? 
ANSWER:  The rental rate is developed by the Airports Authority Finance Department and is based 
on cost recovery for the specific facility. 
 

17. Is Signature staffing count available? 
ANSWER:  No. 
 

18. What GSE used by Signature is on site? 
ANSWER:  The ground service equipment is owned by the current contractor and is not tracked by 
the Airport. 
 

19. Is de-icing fluid sales volume available? 
ANSWER:  No. 
 

20. On page 8 of the RFP, Section VII B. 1. e. Premises Maintenance Plan, references Exhibit E of the 
Draft Concession Contract which is the Incorporation of Contractors Proposal. Is this supposed to be 
referencing Exhibit B of the Draft Concession Contract which is the Hangar 7 Preventative 
Maintenance Program and Matrix? 
ANSWER:  Yes, the RFP has been revised to reference Exhibit B.  Please see Amendment No. 1 for 
the revision. 
 

21. On page 7 of the RFP, Section VII A. 1. The RFP states that the proposal must be on 8 1/2 X 11 
paper. However there are certain tables of information that may be easier to read if provided on larger 
paper as a fold out. Can large paper be used for these tables of information?  
ANSWER:  Larger paper such as 11X17 can be used, but will count as two pages. 

22. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 16, subsection 2a; Does the authority mean 
14% or 8%? 
ANSWER:  Fourteen percent (14%).  Please see Amendment No. 1 for the revision. 
 



23. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 21, section 5.04 A, would the Authority 
consider limiting the request for copies of Rental Agreements to the Rental Agreements in place at 
another MWAA location such as IAD? Some proposers may have dozens of operating locations and 
compliance with this type of request may be very onerous.  
ANSWER:  Section 5.04 of the Draft Concession Contract has been revised.  Please see Amendment 
No. 1 for the revised language.   

24. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 22 and 23, subsections 5.05 A and E Can the 
Authority please define related parties?  
ANSWER:  No.  Related parties is a commonly used term. 

 
25. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 22, subsection 5.05 B would the Authority 

consider inserting that language appearing in italic below which already exists in the Concession 
agreement currently in place as follows ...authorized representative; provided, however, that such 
inspection shall be made during reasonable business hours and shall not be conducted in a manner  
ANSWER:  No. 
 

26. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 23, Section 5.05 B, should the reference to 
five 5 days be fifteen 15 days to track with the first sentence of this section? 
ANSWER:  Section 5.05 B of the Draft Concession Contract has been revised.  Please see 
Amendment No. 1 for the revised language.  
 

27. Referring to the proposed Concession agreement at page 23, Section 5.05 E, would the authority 
consider adding at the end of the first sentence the following language appearing in italics ...for a 
period not to exceed five 5 years following expiration or early termination of this Contract. 
ANSWER:  No.  Records must be kept for three years after the end of any contract year. 
 

28. RFP mentions LDBE and MBE and WBE requirements. Section 7.07 does not reference an LDBE JV, 
just an MBE JV. Would an LDBE JV also qualify consistent with what was presented to the Board on 
April 17, 2013? 
ANSWER:  Yes, a LDBE JV would be allowed. 
 

29. The Draft Concession contract Section 3.07 requires contractor to provide services 24 hours per day 
unless otherwise approved in writing by the Authority. Is the Authority granting a waiver based on the 
fact that the airport is closed from 1000 pm to 700 am except for arriving aircraft; assuming staff is 
available for emergencies or scheduled arrivals? 
ANSWER:  Yes 


